
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 1 of 1 

Agenda material can be inspected at 1125 Tamalpais Avenue, San Rafael, CA 94901 on the Mission Avenue side of the building. The meeting facilities are in 
accessible locations. If you are a person with a disability and require this document in an alternate format (example: Braille, Large Print, Audiotape, CD-ROM), 
you may request it by using the contact information below. If you require accommodation (example: ASL Interpreter, reader, note taker) to participate in any 
MCE program, service or activity, you may request an accommodation by calling (415) 464-6032 (voice) or 711 for the California Relay Service or by e-mail 
at djackson@mceCleanEnergy.org not less than four work days in advance of the event.  

Executive Committee Meeting 
Friday, December 1, 2017 

12:30 P.M. 
 
 

The Barbara George Conference Room 
1125 Tamalpais Ave. 
San Rafael, CA 94901 

 
 

Remote location:  
The City of Concord, Permit Center Conference Room, 1950 Parkside Dr., Concord, CA 94519 
 

 
1. Board Announcements (Discussion) 
 
2. Public Open Time (Discussion) 
 
3. Report from Chief Executive Officer (Discussion) 
 
4. Consent Calendar (Discussion/Action) 

C.1 Approval of 11.3.17 Meeting Minutes 
  C.2 Monthly Budget Update 
 C.3 First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Mogo Interactive 
  C.4 Second Agreement with Nest Labs, Inc. 
  C.5 First Agreement with Mojo Associates 
  C.6 Revisions to Policy 012 - Dogs in the Workplace  
 
5. Net Energy Metering Tariff Adjustment (Discussion/Action) 

 
6. MCE Supplier Diversity Symposium (Discussion) 
 
7. Board Member & Staff Matters (Discussion) 

 
8. Adjourn 



DRAFT 

1 
 
 

MCE  
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Friday, November 3, 2017 
12:00 P.M. 

 
City of Concord, Permit Center Conference Center 

1950 Parkside Drive  
Concord, CA 

 
MCE, Barbara George Conference Room 

1125 Tamalpais Avenue  
San Rafael, CA 94901 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

Closed Session was called to order at 12:12 P.M. to discuss Real Estate Property Negotiations 
(Government § 54956.8) (Discussion/Action) 
 
 
ACTION: It was M/S/C (Haroff/Greene) to authorize staff to complete negotiations and authorize CEO to 
sign lease agreement.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. (Absent: Directors Birsan, Glover, McCaskill, 
Sears and Trotter).  
 
 
Roll Call 
Present: Denise Athas, City of Novato (San Rafael) 
 Sloan Bailey, Town of Corte Madera, Acting Committee Chair (Concord) 
 Lisa Blackwell, Town of Danville (Concord) 
 Tom Butt, City of Richmond, Committee Chair (San Rafael) 
 Barbara Coler, Town of Fairfax (San Rafael) 
 Ford Greene, Town of San Anselmo (Concord) 
 Kevin Haroff, City of Larkspur (Concord) 
  
Absent: Edi Birsan, City of Concord 
 Federal Glover, County of Contra Costa 
 Bob McCaskill, City of Belvedere 
 Kate Sears, County of Marin 
 Dave Trotter, Town of Moraga 
 
Staff: Meaghan Doran, Manager of Customer Programs, Operations (Concord)  
 Sarah Estes-Smith, Director of Internal Operations (Concord) 

Agenda Item #04_C.1_11.3.17 Meeting Minutes



DRAFT 

2 
 
 

 Jenna Famular, Community Development Manager (Concord) 
 Jesica Flores-Brooks, Board Administrative Assistant (San Rafael) 
 Darlene Jackson, Board Clerk (Concord) 
 Beth Kelly, General Counsel (Concord) 
 Gabrielle Lichtenstein, Community Affairs Representative (Concord) 
 Alexandra McGee, Community Power Organizer (Concord)  
 David McNeil, Manager of Finance (San Rafael) 
 Justine Parmelee, Internal Operations Manager (Concord) 
 Marcela Vazquez, Community Affairs Representative (Concord) 
 Dawn Weisz, CEO (Concord) 
 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 12:27 P.M. by Acting Committee Chair, Sloan Bailey. A request 
was made by Committee Member Lisa Blackwell to reorder the Agenda due to time constraints. 
 
 
ACTION: It was M/S/C (Greene/Blackwell) to re-order the meeting agenda. Motion carried by unanimous 
vote. (Absent: Directors Birsan, Glover, McCaskill, Sears and Trotter).  
 
 
Agenda Item #4 – Consent Calendar (Discussion/Action) 

 
C.1 10.6.17 Meeting Minutes 
C.2 Monthly Budget Update 
C.3 First Amendment to Fifth Agreement with AEA 
C.4 Seventh Agreement with CESC 
C.5 Second Amendment to First Agreement with TEAA 

 
 
ACTION: It was M/S/C (Greene/Haroff) to approve Consent Calendar. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
(Absent: Directors Birsan, Glover, McCaskill, Sears and Trotter).  
 
 
Agenda Item #7 – California Community Choice Policy Engagement (Discussion/Action) 
 
CEO, Dawn Weisz, introduced this item and addressed questions from the Committee. 
 
  

Agenda Item #04_C.1_11.3.17 Meeting Minutes



DRAFT 

3 
 
 

ACTION: It was M/S/C (Haroff/Greene) to authorize payment of policy engagement dues to CalCCA for 
CalCCA’s fiscal year 2017/18 in an amount not to exceed $150,000, subject to Board approval of the FY 
2017/18 Operating Fund Budget Amendment. Motion carried by unanimous vote. (Absent: Directors 
Birsan, Glover, McCaskill, Sears and Trotter).  
 
 
Agenda Item #8 – Fiscal Year 2017/18 Operating Fund Budget Amendment (Discussion/Action) 
 
Manager of Finance, David McNeil, introduced this item and addressed questions from the Committee. 
 
 
ACTION: It was M/S/C (Greene/Blackwell) to recommend approval of the proposed Amendment to FY 
2017/18 Operating Fund Budget to your Board at the November Board meeting. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. (Absent: Directors Birsan, Glover, McCaskill, Sears and Trotter).  
 
 
Agenda Item #9 – Charles F. McGlashan Advocacy Award Nominations (Discussion/Action) 
 
Alexandra McGee, Community Power Organizer, introduced this item and addressed questions from the 
Committee. 
 
 
ACTION: It was M/S/C (Coler/Athas) to select the 2017 recipient of the Charles F. McGlashan Advocacy 
Award to be presented at the November meeting of the MCE Board of Directors. The selected recipient 
was Rebecca Milliken of the El Cerrito Environmental Quality Commission. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. (Absent: Directors Birsan, Glover, McCaskill, Sears and Trotter).  
 
 
Agenda Item #5 – Customer Programs Overview (Discussion) 
 
 
No action was required. 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 – Workforce & Supplier Diversity Policy (Discussion) 
 
 
No action was required. 
 
 
Agenda Item #10 – Review Draft 11.16.17 Board Agenda (Discussion) 
 

Agenda Item #04_C.1_11.3.17 Meeting Minutes



DRAFT 

4 
 
 

 
ACTION: No action was required. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned to the next scheduled Executive Committee Meeting on December 1, 2017. 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Tom Butt, Executive Committee Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Dawn Weisz, Chief Executive Officer 

Agenda Item #04_C.1_11.3.17 Meeting Minutes



1 

 

ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Marin Clean Energy 

Management is responsible for the accompanying special purpose statement of Marin Clean Energy 
(a California Joint Powers Authority) which comprise the budgetary comparison schedule for the 
period ended October 31, 2017, and for determining that the budgetary basis of accounting is an 
acceptable financial reporting framework. We have performed a compilation engagement in 
accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the 
Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or review the 
accompanying statement nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or 
completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on this special purpose budgetary comparison 
statement.  

The special purpose statement is prepared in accordance with the budgetary basis of accounting, 
which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. This report is intended for the information of the Board of Directors of MCE. 

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  If the omitted disclosures were 
included in the special purpose budgetary comparison statement, they might influence the user’s 
conclusions about the Authority’s results of operations. Accordingly, this special purpose budgetary 
comparison statement is not designed for those who are not informed about such matters. 

The supplementary information contained on page 4 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis. The supplementary information has been compiled from information that is the 
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the supplementary information 
and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on such supplementary 
information. 

We are not independent with respect to the Authority because we performed certain accounting 
services that impaired our independence. 

Maher Accountancy 
San Rafael, CA 
November 20, 2017 

1101 FIFTH AVENUE • SUITE 200 • SAN RAFAEL, CA 94901 

Agenda Item #04_C.2_ Monthly Budget Update



 YTD Budget 

(Amended) 

YTD Budget 

Variance (Under) 

Over

YTD Budget 

Variance 

(Under)Over %

 Annual  Budget 

(Amended) 

 Budget 

Remaining 

 2016/17  2017/18  2017/18  2017/18  2017/18  2017/18  2017/18 

ENERGY REVENUE

    Revenue - Electricity (net of allowance) 99,816,016$     129,721,458$   135,514,845$     (5,793,387)$          -4.28% 209,162,000$     79,440,542$       

    Other revenue 160,712            155,284            5,833                  149,451                2562.01% 10,000                (145,284)             

       TOTAL ENERGY REVENUE 99,976,728       129,876,742     135,520,678       (5,643,936)            -4.16% 209,172,000       79,295,258         

ENERGY EXPENSES

    Cost of energy 80,891,917       109,678,580     111,502,373       (1,823,793)            -1.64% 183,194,000       73,515,420         

        TOTAL ENERGY EXPENSES 80,891,917       109,678,580     111,502,373       (1,823,793)            -1.64% 183,194,000       73,515,420         

        NET ENERGY REVENUE 19,084,811       20,198,162       24,018,305         (3,820,143)            25,978,000         

OPERATING EXPENSES

    Personnel 2,472,348         3,106,637         3,840,667           (734,030)               -19.11% 6,584,000           3,477,363           

    Data manager 1,823,080         2,103,029         2,210,533           (107,504)               -4.86% 3,794,000           1,690,971           

    Service fees- PG&E 567,311            797,534            866,393              (68,859)                 -7.95% 1,487,000           689,466              

    Technical and scheduling services 328,915            399,777            457,413              (57,636)                 -12.60% 806,000              406,223              

    Legal counsel 370,788            329,011            469,000              (139,989)               -29.85% 804,000              474,989              

    Communications services

         and related expenses 814,031            441,623            1,149,750           (708,127)               -61.59% 1,971,000           1,529,377           

    Other services 255,704            372,820            863,917              (491,097)               -56.85% 1,481,000           1,108,180           

    General and administration 240,898            334,984            395,500              (60,516)                 -15.30% 678,000              343,016              

    Occupancy 222,732            280,061            401,917              (121,856)               -30.32% 689,000              408,939              

    Integrated demand-side pilot programs 6,697                23,325              125,417              (102,092)               -81.40% 215,000              191,675              

    Marin County green business program -                        -                        10,000                (10,000)                 0.00% 10,000                10,000                

    Low income solar programs 23,700              35,200              23,333                11,867                  50.86% 40,000                4,800                  

        TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7,126,204         8,224,001         10,813,839         (2,589,838)            -23.95% 18,559,000         10,334,999         

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 11,958,607       11,974,161       13,204,466         (1,230,305)            7,419,000           

NONOPERATING REVENUES 

    Grant Income 118,833              (118,833)               0.00% 713,000              713,000              

    Interest income 42,290              152,664            75,833                76,831                  101.32% 130,000              (22,664)               

        TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 42,290              152,664            194,667              (42,003)                 843,000              690,336              

NONOPERATING EXPENSES

    Interest expense and financing costs 33,515              40,000              168,000              (128,000)               -76.19% 168,000              128,000              

    Depreciation (supplemental) 52,507              63,778              70,583                (6,805)                   -9.64% 121,000              57,222                

        TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSES 86,022              103,778            238,583              (134,805)               289,000              185,222              

        TOTAL NONOPERATING

          INCOME (EXPENSES) (43,732)            48,886              (43,917)               92,803                  -211.32% 554,000              

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 11,914,875       12,023,047       13,160,549         (1,137,502)            7,973,000           

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES, INTERFUND

  TRANSFERS & OTHER

    Capital outlay 80,502              131,148            434,000              (302,852)               -69.78% 744,000              612,852              

    Depreciation (supplemental) (52,507)            (63,778)            (70,583)               6,805                    -9.64% (121,000)             (57,222)               

    Transfer to Renewable Energy Reserve 1,000,000         -                        -                          -                            -                          -                          

    Transfer to Local Renewable Development Fund 173,000            186,000            186,000              -                            0.00% 186,000              -                          

        TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES, 

            INTERFUND TRANSFERS & OTHER 1,200,995         253,370            549,417              (296,047)               -53.88% 809,000              555,630              

Net increase (decrease) in available fund balance 10,713,880$     11,769,677$     12,611,133$       (841,456)$             7,164,000$         

 Actual - from April 1 through 

October 31 

MARIN CLEAN ENERGY
OPERATING FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
April 1, 2017 through October 31, 2017

See accountants' compilation report. 2

Agenda Item #04_C.2_ Monthly Budget Update



 Amended 
Budget  Actual 

 Budget 
Remaining 

Actual/ 
Budget

REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES:
    Public purpose energy efficiency program 1,691,000$   680,440$      1,010,560$   40.24%
    Public purpose Low Income Families 
     and Tenants pilot program 1,750,000     82,128          1,667,872     4.69%

TOTAL REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES: 3,441,000     762,568        2,678,432     

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES:
    Public purpose energy efficiency program 1,691,000     680,440        1,010,560     40.24%
    Public purpose Low Income Families 
     and Tenants pilot program 1,750,000     82,128          1,667,872     4.69%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES: 3,441,000     762,568        2,678,432     

Net increase (decrease) in fund balance -$                  -$                  

 Budget  Actual 
 Budget 

Remaining 
Actual/ 
Budget

REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES:
  Transfer from Operating Fund 186,000$      186,000$      -$                  100.00%

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES:
Capital Outlay and related 186,000        16,772          169,228        9.02%

Net increase (decrease) in fund balance -$                  169,228        
   Fund balance at beginning of period -                    
   Fund balance at end of period 169,228        

 Budget  Actual 
 Budget 

Remaining 
Actual/ 
Budget

REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES:
  Other proceeds * 800,000$      777,962$      761,350$      97.25%
  Transfer from Operating Fund -                    -                    -                         N/A
     Total revenue and other sources 800,000$      777,962$      761,350$      

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES: 225,000        -                    225,000        0.00%

Net increase (decrease) in fund balance 575,000$      777,962        
   Fund balance at beginning of period 443,721        
   Fund balance at end of period 1,221,683$   

*Other proceeds relate to the transfer of the Solar One project.

April 1, 2017 through October 31, 2017

LOCAL RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENT FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

April 1, 2017 through October 31, 2017

RENEWABLE ENERGY RESERVE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MARIN CLEAN ENERGY
ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAM FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

April 1, 2017 through October 31, 2017

See accountants' compilation report. 3

Agenda Item #04_C.2_ Monthly Budget Update



 Actual 

Other services
  Audit 36,496$           
  Accounting 86,607             
  IT Consulting 60,250             
  Human resources & payroll fees 5,951               
  Miscellaneous professional fees 183,516           

    Other services 372,820$         

General and administration
  Data and telephone service 20,966$           
  Meeting room rentals 2,106               
  Office equipment lease 3,458               
  Dues and subscriptions 126,637           
  Conferences and professional education 35,511             
  Travel 45,397             
  Business meals 6,123               
  Interest and late fees 1,143               
  Miscellaneous administration 57,316             
  Office supplies and postage 36,327             

    General and administration 334,984$         

MARIN CLEAN ENERGY
 BUDGETARY SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE

April 1, 2017 through October 31, 2017

See accountants' compilation report. 4

Agenda Item #04_C.2_ Monthly Budget Update



 

 
 

December 1, 2017 
 

TO: MCE Executive Committee  
 
FROM: Kalicia Pivirotto, Marketing Manager 
 
RE: First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Mogo  

Interactive (Agenda Item #04-C.3)  
 

ATTACHMENTS: A. Professional Services Agreement with Mogo Interactive 
 B. Proposed First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with 
 Mogo Interactive 
   
  
Dear Executive Committee Members: 
  

 

Summary: 
Under the Professional Services Agreement with Mogo Interactive (“Agreement”), the vendor 
provides purchasing services to MCE for cable television, digital, BART station, and print 
newspaper advertisements across MCE’s new Contra Costa communities of Concord, Danville, 
Martinez, Moraga, Oakley, Pinole, Pittsburg, San Ramon, and unincorporated Contra Costa 
County. The goals of the advertisements are to create community awareness, build recognition 
of MCE, and increase enrollments in Deep Green energy.  
 
Under the proposed First Amendment to the Agreement (“Amendment”), Mogo would purchase 
cable television ad airtime in MCE’s current service area (Marin County, Napa County, Benicia, 
El Cerrito, Lafayette, Richmond, San Pablo, and Walnut Creek) to maintain the visibility and 
success of the current Deep Green opt up campaign. Additionally, the proposed Amendment 
would extend the services through June 2018, allowing for further advertising through the new 
Contra Costa community enrollment period. 
 
Mogo’s monthly fees for these services are:  

• 15% of cost of media buy for cable television, BART station, print newspaper, and digital 
media ads (display and social media) 

• 25% of cost of media for paid search ads 
 
Fiscal Impacts: Costs related to the proposed contract amendment are included in the FY 
2017/18 Operating Fund Budget. 
 
Recommendation: Approve the proposed First Amendment to Professional Services 

Agreement with Mogo Interactive. 



Agenda Item #04_C.3_Att. A_1st Prof. Svcs. Agrmt with Mogo Marketing



Agenda Item #04_C.3_Att. A_1st Prof. Svcs. Agrmt with Mogo Marketing



Agenda Item #04_C.3_Att. A_1st Prof. Svcs. Agrmt with Mogo Marketing



Agenda Item #04_C.3_Att. A_1st Prof. Svcs. Agrmt with Mogo Marketing



Agenda Item #04_C.3_Att. A_1st Prof. Svcs. Agrmt with Mogo Marketing



1  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 

This Amendment is made effective as of December 1, 2017, between Marin Clean Energy 
(MCE), a California Joint Powers Authority ("Client") and Mogo Marketing + Media, Inc., doing 
business as MogoARTS Marketing, Mogo Interactive, and Mogo ("Agency"). 

WHEREAS, Client and Agency entered into a Professional Services Agreement and Nondisclosure 
Agreement (“Agreement”) on June 12, 2017, for certain advertising, media planning and buying services; 
and, 

WHEREAS, Client and Agency desire to amend the term of the Agreement and to modify the scope 
and/or type(s) of advertising campaign(s) that Agency will undertake on Client’s behalf. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to modify the Agreement as set forth below: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. Article 1.01 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
Term. The effective date of this Agreement shall be from June 12, 2017 through June 30, 2018. 

Continuation of services set out in this agreement shall constitute continuation of the terms and 
conditions set forth within. 
 

2. Article 3.06, specifically the bulleted list titled “Mogo Interactive Agency Fees for Placement of 
Media that includes Planning, Campaign Builds, Campaign Optimizations and Post 
Performance Reporting,” is amended to read as follows: 

 
• Broadcast Media: 15% monthly fee on top of Media Budget 
• Display Media: 15% monthly fee on top of Media Budget 
• Social Media:   15% monthly fee on top of Media Budget 
• BART Station Media: 15% fee on top of Media Budget 
• Paid Search:  25% monthly fee on top of Media Budget 

 
3. Except as otherwise provided herein, all terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

Executed at Corte Madera, California, as of the date first set forth above.

Agenda Item #04_C.3_Att. B_1st Amdmt to Prof. Svcs. Agrmt w/Mogo



2  

 
Mogo Marketing + Media, Inc. MCE 

  

By: By: 

Date: 

Doug Mowbray, CEO, President 

Mogo Marketing + Media, Inc. 

Date: 

Dawn Weisz, CEO 

MCE 

 

 By:__________________________________ 

Date: 

Print Name:___________________________ 

Title:________________________________ 

 

  

Agenda Item #04_C.3_Att. B_1st Amdmt to Prof. Svcs. Agrmt w/Mogo



 

 
 

 

December 1, 2017 
 

TO: MCE Executive Committee  
 
FROM: Justine Parmelee, Internal Operations Manager 

RE: Revisions to Policy 012: Dogs in the Workplace (Agenda Item #04 – C.6) 

 
ATTACHMENTS: A. Proposed Policy 012: Dogs in the Workplace 
 B. Policy 012: Dogs in the Workplace  
   
  
Dear Executive Committee Members: 
  

 

SUMMARY:  
On June 18, 2016, MCE’s Board of Directors approved MCE’s Policy 012: Dogs in the Workplace. This 
Policy permits employees to bring dogs into the San Rafael office provided that key guidelines and 
requirements are met. 

 
At the November 3, 2017 meeting, the Executive Committee authorized MCE staff to finalize and 

execute a lease agreement for an office space in Concord. This multi-tenant building does not allow 
animals in the premises, with the exception of service animals as defined by the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA). To satisfy lease requirements while maintaining a dog-friendly atmosphere at 
MCE, staff recommends removing the associated guidelines from MCE Policy 012: Dogs in the 

Workplace to allow for timely updates to adjust for changing needs of staff and to maintain compliance 

with ADA. In addition, staff recommends updating associated guidelines to reflect building 
requirements. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve revisions to Policy 012: Dogs in the Workplace. 



 

 
 

 
UPDATED DRAFT 
December 1, 2017 

 
POLICY 012: DOGS IN THE WORKPLACE 

 
It is the policy of MCE to support the presence of well-trained dogs in the 
workplace. Dogs in office environments have been shown to reduce stress and boost 
employee morale. This policy is crafted to support these benefits while mitigating 
possible impacts to the work environment. 

 
Full-time and part-time MCE employees given approval by their Department Director 
may be eligible to bring their dog to work, depending on the office location, and 
according to guidelines established and updated by staff leadership.  
 

 

Agenda Item #04_C.6_Att. A_Prop. Rev. to Policy 012 - Dogs in the Workplace



 

 
 

 

 

 

o 
o 

o 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #04_C.6_Att. B_Policy 012 - Dog in the Workplace



 
 

 

 

o 
o 

o 

 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

o 

Agenda Item #04_C.6_Att. B_Policy 012 - Dog in the Workplace



Agenda Item #04_C.6_Att. B_Policy 012 - Dog in the Workplace



 

 
 
    

  
 
 

 

 
 
    

Agenda Item #04_C.6_Att. B_Policy 012 - Dog in the Workplace



 
 

December 1, 2017 

 

TO: MCE Executive Committee 
 
FROM: Justin Kudo, Deputy Director of Account Services 
 
RE: Net Energy Metering Tariff Adjustment (Agenda Item #05) 
 
ATTACHMENT: Draft Amended Electric Schedule NEM – Net Energy Metering Service 
   

 
   

Dear Executive Committee Members: 
 

Overview: 
MCE’s Net Energy Metering (NEM) tariff provides the billing mechanism that enables customers to 
accumulate credits for surplus on-site renewable energy production, like rooftop solar. First 
established by your Board in June 2010, the NEM tariff serves approximately 11,000 MCE accounts. 
With service beginning in nine new Contra Costa member communities in April 2018, the NEM tariff is 
expected to grow to serve more than 25,000 accounts.  
 
Under the existing NEM tariff, in April each year customers with a credit balance of more than $100 
may elect to “cash out” and receive direct payment by check from MCE for the balance (NEM Cash-
Out). This program does not currently have a cap on accruals or payments, such as the limits set by 
other Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) programs. 
 
Proposed Cash-Out Amendments: 
NEM Cap 
Staff recommends adopting a cap of $5,000, similar to those used by other CCAs. This cap would 
impact a very small number of accounts which currently receive Cash-Out payments above $5,000 
annually. Staff recommends providing advance notice to customers with eligible balances above this 
cap. Adoption of a cap would result in a small increase in MCE’s net position, which could be used to 
increase funding for customer programs, including solar installations for low-income customers. 
 
PG&E currently operates a program called RES-BCT (Bill Credit Transfer), a tariff which allows 
municipal accounts to transfer surplus generation credits from one account to another, similar to the 
arrangement offered by the Cash-Out program. Staff recommends that an exception be included in 
MCE’s NEM tariff to allow customers which could otherwise qualify for RES-BCT to be excluded from 
the cap. 
 
Donation of Cash-Out Credit 
In addition to the option of credit Cash-Out or rollover, staff recommends allowing customers the 
option to donate their credits towards the installation of solar for low-income households. This could 
be provided as an option on NEM Cash-Out offerings starting in April 2018. 
 
  



1 
Aggregated NEM (NEMA) refers to a single customer with multiple meters on the same property, or on adjacent 

or contiguous properties. 

Aggregated Net Energy Metering 
The California Public Utilities Code Sec. 2827 (h)(4)(B) requires that “aggregated NEM” 
(NEMA/NEMAG) customers1 be permanently ineligible for net surplus compensation, which includes 
compensation methods such as MCE’s NEM Cash-Out. An amendment to our NEM tariff can exclude 
these accounts from future Cash-Out eligibility. 
 
Staff recommends the following amendments, which would limit financial uncertainty and allow MCE 
to direct revenue to other community benefit programs, such as those supporting disadvantaged 
populations, and comply with CPUC regulations regarding NEMA/NEMAG accounts.  
 

Following the completion of the 2018 Cash-Out process: 
• Implement a cap of $5,000 to the Cash-Out provision  

• Remove credits accrued beyond $5,000 at the end of each April 

• Staff shall determine an exception methodology for municipal agencies which may otherwise be 
eligible for RES-BCT to not be impacted by the NEM Cap 

 
Effective immediately: 
• Exclude NEMA/NEMAG accounts from MCE Cash-Out eligibility 

• During annual Cash-Out period, allow NEM customers that have accrued between $100-$5,000 
the option of donating credits to MCE’s low-income solar rooftop fund 

 
Fiscal Impact:  
There would be no cost to the Fiscal Year 2017-18 budget.  The cap and voluntary option to donate 
credits would result in additional funds being available in Fiscal Year 2018-19 for low-income solar 
rooftop programs and other programs for disadvantaged customers.   
 
Recommendation: Approve proposed adjustments to the Electric Schedule NEM – Net Energy 
Metering Service. 



Revised December 1, 2017  
  

Page 1 

 

 

 

 

ELECTRIC SCHEDULE NEM - NET ENERGY METERING SERVICE 

APPLICABILITY:  This net energy metering (NEM) schedule is applicable to a customer who uses an 
eligible Renewable Electrical Generation Facility, as defined in PG&E’s Electric Schedule NEM 
(http://www.pge.com/tariffs/ERS.SHTML#ERS), within the capacity limits described in PG&E’s Electric 
Schedule NEM that is located on the customer’s owned, leased, or rented premises, is interconnected 
and operates in parallel with PG&E’s transmission and distribution systems, and is intended primarily to 
offset part or all of the customer’s own electrical requirements (hereinafter “eligible customer-
generator” or “customer”).  
 
This rate schedule is available on a first-come, first-served basis to customers that provide PG&E with a 
completed PG&E NEM Application and comply with all PG&E NEM requirements as described in PG&E 
Electric Schedule NEM. This includes customers served by NEMV (Virtual Net Energy Metering), 
NEMVMASH (Virtual Net Energy Metering for Multifamily Affordable Housing), NEMA (NEM 
Aggregation) and Multiple Tariff facilities as described by PG&E Electric Schedule NEM. 
 
TERRITORY:  The entire MCE service area. 

RATES:  All rates charged under this schedule will be in accordance with the eligible customer-
generator’s otherwise-applicable MCE rate schedule (OAS). An eligible customer-generator served under 
this schedule is responsible for all charges from its OAS including monthly minimum charges, customer 
charges, meter charges, facilities charges, demand charges and surcharges, and all other charges owed 
to MCE or PG&E. Charges for energy (kWh) supplied by MCE, will be based on the net metered usage in 
accordance with this tariff. 
 
BILLING: Customers with NEM service will be billed as follows: 
 

a) For a customer with Non-Time of Use (TOU) Rates:  
Any net consumption or production shall be valued monthly as follows: 
 
If the eligible customer-generator is a “Net Consumer,” having overall positive usage over a 
billing cycle, the eligible customer-generator will be billed in accordance with the eligible 
customer-generator’s OAS.  
 
If the eligible customer-generator is a “Net Generator,” having overall negative usage over a 
billing cycle, any net energy production shall be valued at the OAS plus the currently applicable 
Deep Green Option Energy Charge. The calculated value of any net energy production shall be 
credited to MCE customers as described in Section (c). 
 

b) For a customer with TOU Rates: 

Agenda Item #05_Att:_Electric Schedule NEM - Net Metering Service

http://www.pge.com/tariffs/ERS.SHTML#ERS


Revised December 1, 2017  
  

Page 2 

If the eligible customer-generator is a Net Consumer (as defined above) during any discrete TOU 
period, the net kWh consumed during such period shall be billed in accordance with applicable 
TOU period-specific rates/charges, as described in the eligible customer-generator’s OAS. 
 
If the eligible customer-generator is a Net Generator (as defined above) during any discrete TOU 
period, the net kWh produced during such period shall be valued in consideration of the 
applicable TOU period-specific rates/charges, as described in the eligible customer-generator’s 
OAS, plus the Deep Green Option Energy Charge.  The calculated value of any net energy 
production during a specific TOU period shall be credited to MCE customers as described in 
Section (c). 
 

c) Monthly Settlement of MCE Charges/Credits: 
 
NEM customers will receive a statement in their monthly PG&E bills indicating any accrued 
charges for their usage during the current billing cycle. Customers who have accrued credits 
during previous billing cycles will see these credits applied against current charges. Any 
remaining balance is due and must be paid during each monthly billing cycle. 
 
When a customer’s net energy production results in a net bill credit over a billing cycle, the 
value of any net energy production during the billing cycle shall be noted on the customer’s bill 
and carried over as a bill credit for use in subsequent billing period(s). 
 

d) MCE Annual Cash-Out: 
 
During the April billing cycle of each year, all current MCE NEM customers with a credit balance 
of more than $100 will be offered a direct payment by check for this balance, or may choose to 
donate their credit balance to MCE’s low-income solar rooftop fund.  The maximum eligible 
amount that can be cashed out is $5,000.  
 
Any credit balance will be determined as of the final date of the customer’s March-April billing 
cycle. Any credit beyond the $5,000 limit will be removed from the NEM account balance 
following this billing cycle. Customers who participate in the MCE Cash-Out or donation process 
will have an equivalent credit removed from their NEM account balance at the time of check 
issuance. In the event that customers do not elect to receive a check or donate their accrued 
NEM credits, such credits will continue to be tracked by MCE and will remain on the customer’s 
account for future use (i.e., reduction of future MCE charges). 
 
Customers who close their electric account through PG&E or move outside of the MCE service 
area prior to the April billing cycle of each year are also eligible for the annual MCE Cash-Out 
process. Such Cash-Outs are still subject to the $5,000 cap, and any additional credit balance will 
be removed from the account upon Cash-Out. 
 

e) Return to PG&E Bundled Service: 
 
MCE customers with NEM service may opt out and return to PG&E bundled service at any time. 
Customers should be advised that PG&E will perform a true-up of their account at the time of 
return to PG&E bundled service, and that PG&E’s standard terms for transitional rates apply to 

Agenda Item #05_Att:_Electric Schedule NEM - Net Metering Service



Revised December 1, 2017  
  

Page 3 

customer returns with less than a six-month advance notice if they have been an MCE customer 
for 60 days or more. 
 
If an MCE NEM customer opts-out of the MCE program and returns to bundled service, that 
customer may request to cash-out any remaining generation credits on the account, not to 
exceed $5,000, provided that the request is received within 90 calendar days of the return to 
PG&E service. 
 

f) Customers with Local Sol Service: 
If the eligible customer-generator is served by MCE’s Local Sol program, all usage and 
generation shall be billed at the customer’s applicable Local Sol rate. The billing and rate 
descriptions in sections (a) and (b) shall not apply.  
 
Local Sol customers are not eligible for MCE’s Annual Cash-Out provisions described in section 
(d). Excess credit balances during each Annual Cash-Out will automatically be carried over into 
the next annual period and will not be available for direct payment. Local Sol customers who 
close their electric account or who move outside of the PG&E service area are not eligible for 
the MCE Cash-Out process. 
 
In the event that a Local Sol customer returns to Light Green or Deep Green service, any credit 
balance accrued under the Local Sol tariff will remain ineligible for the MCE Cash-Out process. 
 

g) PG&E NEM Services: 
 
MCE NEM customers are subject to the conditions and billing procedures of PG&E for their non-
generation services, as described in PG&E’s Electric Schedule NEM and related PG&E tariff 
options addressing NEM service. Customers should be advised that while MCE settles out 
balances for generation on a monthly basis, PG&E will continue to assess charges for delivery, 
transmission and other services. Most NEM customers will receive an annual true-up from PG&E 
for these non-generation services. 
 
Customers are encouraged to review PG&E’s most up-to-date NEM tariffs, which are available 
from PG&E. 
 

h) Aggregated NEM 
 
Per the California Public Utilities Commission Section 2827(h)(4)(B), aggregated NEM customers 
are “permanently ineligible to receive net surplus electricity compensation.” Therefore, any 
excess accrued credits over the course of a year under an aggregated NEM account are ineligible 
for MCE’s annual Cash-Out as in section (d). All other NEM rules apply to aggregated NEM 
accounts.  
 

Agenda Item #05_Att:_Electric Schedule NEM - Net Metering Service


	12.1.17 ExCom Agenda
	04_C.1_11.3.17 Draft ExCom Minutes
	04_C.2_2017-10 MCE Budget Reports
	04_C.4_Staff Report-1st Amended to Professional Services Agreement with Mogo
	Summary:

	C.3_Att. A_Agreement and NDA for Mogo Professional Services  FULLY EXECUTED 6.14.17
	C.3_Att. B_First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Mogo -11-17-17
	04_C.6_Staff Report - Revisions to Policy 012-Dogs in the Workplace
	SUMMARY:
	On June 18, 2016, MCE’s Board of Directors approved MCE’s Policy 012: Dogs in the Workplace. This Policy permits employees to bring dogs into the San Rafael office provided that key guidelines and requirements are met.

	C.6_Att. A_DRAFT Policy 012-Dogs in the Workplace
	C.6_Att. B_Policy 012-Dogs in the Workplace040616
	05_Staff Report - NEM Tariff Adjustment.pdf
	Overview:
	Proposed Cash-Out Amendments:




